
 
 
 
 
 
 MEETING Monday, June 15, 2015  
    
TIME     5:39 PM 
     
PRESIDING OFFICER   Mayor David P. Maher   
 
PRESENT Mayor Maher, Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, 

Cheung, Kelley, Mazen, McGovern, Simmons and 
Toomey 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
MOMENT OF MEDITATION 
 
VICE MAYOR BENZAN ANNOUNCED THAT THE MEETING WAS BEING RECORDED WITH AUDIO 
AND VISUAL DEVICES. 
 

SUBMISSION OF THE RECORD 
 
On motion of Councillor Carlone the submission of the Minutes from the May 4th Regular 
Meeting and the June 8, 2015 Roundtable/Working Meeting were accepted on a voice vote of 
six members. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Elie Yarden, 143 Pleasant Street, spoke on Policy Order #8 and Committee Report #2.  
He stated that he did attend a meeting on snow removal.  He noted that this meeting was 
an example of how the affairs of the city should be conducted.  He noted that there were 
only five members of the public present and one City Councillor.  He stated that what 
became clear to him is that Cambridge is not as prepared as it might be for dealing with 
problems of climate change.  He stated that it was a fine meeting, however, it was clear 
that it cannot continue this way.  He stated that one main problem is the problem of 
change which is difficult.  He stated that in Cambridge, things remain the same.  One 
thing that remains is the idea of unlimited growth.  He stated that we must start thinking 
in terms of limitation.  He stated that climate change and poverty are related.  He stated 
that the City Manager’s packet indicates that the contractor did not meet the requirements 
because they did not have the required number of skilled workers.  He stated that he is in 
favor or Councillor Mazen’s order.  He stated that at Whole Foods he was reassured that 

1 
 



there was no problem because there was a composter.  He stated that that he was 
reassured that the food was not wasted.  This is the mentality that has to change. 
Jan Devereux, 255 Lakeview Avenue, spoke on Policy Orders #1, 4, 5 and 8.  She stated 
that when the City Council was debating the Normandy Twining petition it was 
questioned if this would set a precedent.  She stated that the same thing is happening at 
the Masse Hardware site.  She stated that as it relates to Policy Order #4, she is concerned 
about conducting one combined hearing as opposed to two as it relates to community 
engagement.  She stated that it is important that the public have adequate time to review 
any materials including the 3-dimensional model.  She stated her support for bike signals.  
She stated that she is opposed to excessive commercial signage and added that putting 
ads on the stations would be fine if they would remain self-sustained. 
Richard Clarey, 15 Brookford Street, spoke on City Manager Agenda #2.  He stated that as it 
relates to snow removal he would like to offer an easy remedy for one of the problems that we 
heard about this winter.  He stated that a member of the city staff acknowledged that there was 
not as much vigorous enforcement and the reason is because the snow removal tickets did not 
have teeth to it.  He stated that if all that is needed is more teeth into the sidewalk snow 
removal ordinance, it should be relatively simple to do.  He stated that snow removal tickets 
could be tied to parking permits which would be an inexpensive and easy remedy. 
 
Florrie Westcoat, 33 Market Street, spoke on City Manager Agenda #4.  She stated that she 
asked the city for a garden space and a bump-out.  Her agreement was that she would tend the 
garden if they planted it.  She stated that the City planted a garden and she tends to the garden 
several times a week.  She stated that this is an incredibly small, yet large, gesture from the city.  
She stated that when she works on the garden she has many people going by and saying thank 
you and asking questions.  She suggested that in the beautification move for Area 4, the city 
come up with a program where spots in the neighborhood be identified along with the creation 
of a program with the residents who would care for these gardens.   
 
Jim Westcoat, 33 Market Street, spoke on City Manage Agenda #4. He stated that he was happy 
to see the Area 4 beautification.  He noted that there is so much potential in the area.  He stated 
that the littering is an issue that needs to be tackled in his neighborhood.  He stated that it is 
worse than past years and he stated that this area could be realized in a fuller sense.  He stated 
that the litter is clogging storm water drains and the rats are a public health issue. 
 
John Pitkin, 18 Fayette Street, spoke on City Manager Agenda #20.  He stated that car-sharing 
implies cooperative ownership.  He stated that this is car rental.  He stated that of greater 
concern is that the study is based on a national survey with different populations and car-
sharing systems.  The results may have no bearing on Cambridge at all.  He stated that in 
Cambridge the car-free households are three times the national number.  He stated that this 
study excluded college students.  He stated that there is no assurance that an extension of car-
sharing services will have any public benefit.  He suggested not using the zoning code for this.  
He stated that he would like the city to be careful and maintain control.  
 
Eric Hoagland, 195 Lexington Avenue, spoke on Policy Order #1.  He stated that he is the 
developer of the Masse parking lot.  He stated that there have been a dozen meetings with the 
larger and smaller community.  He stated that underground parking was a strong need for the 
neighborhood and ground floor retail was something that the neighborhood wanted.  He stated 

2 
 



that he is looking forward to go through the process and he believes that the neighborhood and 
the developer are working together to get to a good place. 
 
David Masse, 11 Marion Circle, Arlington, spoke on Policy Order #1.  He stated that he is the 
owner of the Masse parking lot and the building across the street.  He stated that a lot of 
changes have been made to appease the neighborhood and he asked for City Council support.   
 
Joan Pickett, 59 Ellery Street, spoke on City Manager Agenda #20.  She stated that she is pleased 
that the Planning Board listened to the neighbors but is distressed that the concerns of the 
neighborhood were dismissed.  She stated her hope that the City Council will ask about the 
nuisance that will be created for neighbors.  She stated that the solution that she recommends 
will not impede car-sharing but will ensure that implementation is done in a neighborly way.  
She stated that prior knowledge is important to the neighborhood.  She stated that users will be 
entering onto residential properties.  She stated that there are other car-sharing systems.  She 
noted that Car-2-Go does not have a monthly membership fee and no designated parking 
required.  She stated that car-sharing will continue to evolve and questioned why zoning would 
be created for something that may be obsolete.   
 
James Williamson, 1000 Jackson Place, stated the importance of including sketches for any signs 
that are included in the Applications and Petitions section of the City Council agenda.  He stated 
that he would like to see any changes regarding changing the signaling for bicyclists to be highly 
scrutinized.  He stated that he hopes the City Council will look at this issue carefully.  He stated 
that he would like more done to protect the pedestrian environment from bicyclists.  Regarding 
the Hubway proposal, he stated that there is way too much advertising in the public realm.  He 
stated that regarding City Manager Agenda #16, a commitment was made by MIT for 12 
apprenticeships for Cambridge residents each year.  He stated that the sum total from the City 
Manager’s reply is maybe four which is not good enough.   
 
Jerome Saunders, 295 Harvard Street, 40 year resident of Cambridge, stated that he is 65 years 
old, single and has been a renter for many years.  He stated that he has chosen to be a renter 
and has already considered his apartment his home.  He is a responsible tenant.  He stated that 
the climate for tenants has changed since the exit of rent control.  He stated that his life has 
been interrupted due to this unexpected situation.  He stated that tenants are obligated to pay 
the balance of their current lease.  He stated that a move could cause approximately $10,000.  
He stated that his retirement plans are on hold.  He stated that he is the sole financial support 
for his mother.  He acknowledged that any tenant in good standing should receive special 
considerations and especially if they are senior citizens.  He stated that he speaks because he 
has been provoked.  He stated that he expects responsible communication and negotiation and 
he asked for City Council support.   
 
Margaret McMahon, 14 Highland Avenue, stated that the Planning Board car-sharing petition 
would allow a commercial operation in a community area that is a private space.  She said that a 
commercial operation would impact the security and serenity of those living in the area.  She 
stated that there is no need to ignore the security and privacy rights.  She urged the City Council 
not to support this petition. 
 
Elaine DeRosa, CEOC, stated her hope that the City can negotiate on behalf of the tenants at 295 
Harvard Street.  She stated that CEOC is available to do whatever it can but it is bigger than the 

3 
 



tenants and any individual organization.  She stated that she speaks in support of the incentive 
zoning recommendation.  She stated that this is only one piece of the way to fund affordable 
housing.  She stated that she would like to see Charter Right #1 moved off of the table.     
 
Patrick Barrett, 234 Broadway, spoke on Policy Order #1.  He stated that regarding the Masse 
zoning, similar to Mass + Main, the reason why the zone is being changed is because the zoning 
districts are broken.  He stated that over 51% of properties in Cambridge are non-conforming.  
He stated that regarding car-sharing, the problem that he sees is the fifteen ways to get around 
this.  
 
Heather Hoffman, 213 Hurley Street, stated that regarding the proposal to cancel the last City 
Council meeting for a joint meeting with the Planning Board, she thinks it is moving too fast.  
She stated that having the entire City Council and the entire Planning Board will not result in a 
good discussion.  She spoke in favor of the Harvard Towers tenants.  She stated that what is 
being built is for people who plan on being around for 1-2 years.  She said that we need to invest 
in the people that have been in the City for many years.  Regarding car-sharing, Ms. Hoffman 
stated that there are residential spaces that have Zip Cars in them.  She stated that it has never 
bothered her.  Regarding Hubway advertisement, she noticed that since other cities have 
advertising and Cambridge does not, fewer bikes with the Cambridge city seal are not seen 
around the city.  She stated that she wonders about introducing zoning by way of policy order.  
She would like a standard for this.   
 
Hasson Rashid, 820 Massachusetts Avenue, stated that in regards to preparing appropriate 
zoning language for recommended changes to the incentive zoning provisions, it represents a 
social exclusion of the homeless sector and mosaic and does not make reference to an 
improvement of the lives of the homeless.  He stated that City Manager Agenda #23 refers to 
the supporting of affordable housing development activities that include acquisition, moderate 
rehabilitation, substantial rehabilitation and new construction of housing units for low and 
moderate-income families and individuals.  He stated that according to the five-year 
consolidated plan the city is actually in non-compliance.  He stated that the Foundry Building 
lays dormant and is available to address homelessness.  He stated that he has been advocating 
for an anti-poverty strategy and plan to be included in the Master Plan.    
 
 

CALENDAR ITEM NUMBER ONE AND POLICY ORDER NUMBER NINE 
 
Councillor Toomey moved for suspension of the rules in order to dispense with the 
regular order of business to bring forward Calendar Item Number One and Policy Order 
Number Nine. 
Here insert Calendar Item Number One read by Mayor Maher. 
Here insert Policy Order Number Nine read by Mayor Maher. 
 
The question now came on suspension of the rules and on a voice vote of nine members 
the rules were suspended. 
 
Councillor Toomey stated that as he stated at the last meeting, this is a very important 
initiative that the City is undertaking and it appeared that there was confusion and a lot of 

4 
 



questions among his colleagues about the nature of this and the amount of funds that are 
in the community benefits fund.  He noted that there were two different sets of figures.  
This is the reason that he submitted Policy Order Number Nine for clarification.  He 
stated that it is important that the survey be undertaken and he wanted to give his 
colleagues two weeks in the event that they had questions that they could discuss this 
with the City Manager or the Deputy City Manager for clarification or follow up.  He 
commented that this is a wonderful tool that will help many people in the City.  He stated 
that he wanted to ensure that the neighborhoods that are most impacted and bearing the 
brunt of this development are the beneficiaries as well as the organizations who are 
working with the underserved population.  He stated that it is his hope and expectation 
that this will happen as the City moves forward with this.  He explained that Policy Order 
Nine was for clarification on the funds.  He stated that past mitigation agreements some 
have been lax. He stated that it is the City's responsibility that the commitments made are 
being followed.  He stated that he wanted to make sure that this is done correctly and that 
the populations and neighborhoods most impacted by development are truly benefitting 
and that these funds will benefit the underserved and the underutilized.   
 
Councillor McGovern agreed that the neighborhoods that are feeling the biggest impact 
from development are given extra consideration.  He cautioned that neighborhoods or 
organizations should not be penalized because development is not happening in these 
locations.  He stated that there are areas where development is not happening or cannot 
happen for a variety of reasons.  He stated that as much as he wants neighborhoods most 
impacted to benefit we cannot lose sight that other nonprofits, at no fault of their own, are 
not seeing development and should not be penalized by not getting funding.   Councillor 
Toomey stated that he did not want anyone penalized.  He noted that he wanted those 
populations underserved and underutilized and organizations wherever in the City if they 
are in need receive funding.   
 
The question now came on the adoption of Calendar Item Number One, which reads as 
follows: 
(HERE INSERT APPROPRIATION ORDER FOR $88,430) 
On this question the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,  
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
 Mayor Maher now moved adoption of Policy Order Number Nine, which reads as 
follows: 
(HERE INSERT POLICY ORDER NUMBER NINE) 
 The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 

 
POLICY ORDER NUMBER SIX 

 

5 
 



Councillor Simmons moved suspension of the rules in order to dispense with the regular order 
of business to bring forward Policy Order Number Six because there are people who are 
interested in this matter, if it could be taken up now.   
 
The question now came on suspension of the rules and on a voice vote the rules were - 
 Suspended.   
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE INSERT ORIGINAL POLICY ORDER #6) 
 
Councillor Simmons stated that at a recent Housing Committee hearing during public testimony 
the responders brought this problem to the committee.  This problem was unknown until now.  
She stated that it would be important for the City Council to take a stand on this.  She stated 
that private rental property is almost non-existent in Cambridge.  She spoke about the 
treatment by the private property owner of the 100 residents living at 295 Harvard Street.  She 
stated that the City struggles to preserve as much housing for a variety of income levels in the 
City.  She stated that the City rarely had to fight for private rental housing, but if there ever were 
a time this is the time.  She noted that in the Policy Order it requests that a letter be sent to the 
property owner to let them know that the City Council is incredulous about this.  She stated that 
it is her hope that the property owner will meet swiftly to make a mitigation plan for the 
tenants.  She stated that it would be nice if the project were pulled back to move the tenants 
out.  She stated that there is an assumption that the units will become condominiums which will 
come back on the market as market rate rentals.  She informed the City Council that she would 
writing her own letter to the property owner to encourage them to do the right thing by the 
tenants.   
 
Councillor McGovern stated that this is appalling.  He stated that there was no way that the 
property owners did not know where this was going and could have given the tenants three 
months’ notice.  He noted that the legal requirement does not necessarily mean it is the right 
thing to do.  Even though the property owners are within their legal rights it is not the right 
thing to do.  This is people's lives we are talking about.  He stated that what is going on here is 
not right; people cannot be treated this way.  He stated that he is confident that this will pass 
but this needs to be acted upon swiftly because there is not much time.  He stated that there is 
nothing that the City Council can do to turn this around, but we can speak with the property 
owner to make it easier on people.   
 
Councillor Cheung asked who owns the property.  Councillor Simmons stated that she has never 
heard of this property owner and stated that she first became aware of this at a Housing 
Committee hearing and has not had time to do a lot of fact finding on this.   
 
Mayor Maher offered an amendment at the end thereof a new paragraph which reads as 
follows: 
 
ORDERED: That the City Manager be and hereby is requested to contact all City   
 Housing partners to see what can be done about this matter.  
 
Councillor Carlone commented that it took him three months to find an apartment.  He stated 
that he agreed that there is nothing that can be done legally, but there are ways to make the 
property owner listen in a diplomatic way as it relates to permits and approvals. 

6 
 



 
The question now came on the amendment - and on a voice vote the amendment - 
Carried. 
 
The question now came on adoption of the order as amended which reads as follows: 
(HERE COPY AMENDED POLICY ORDER # 6) 
The order was - 
 Adopted as amended by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 
 
Mayor Maher stated that we are going to turn back to the City Manager's Agenda. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
# 6 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
# 7 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
# 8 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
# 9 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#11 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#12 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#13 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#17 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#22 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
#24 Order adopted 9 - 0 - 0 
 

NON CONSENT AGENDA  
 

Councillor Toomey moved suspension of the rules to dispense with the regular order of business 
and bring forward Agenda Items # 1, 14 and 16. 
 
Here insert Agenda # 1 read by Mayor Maher. 
 
Here insert Agenda # 14 read by Mayor Maher. 
 
Here insert Agenda # 16 read by Mayor Maher.   
 
Councillor Toomey asked the City Manager to give a brief synopsis on the report on Agenda # 1.  
He further stated that all three items are related to career opportunities for Cambridge 
residents.  He stated that the City needs to do a better job to get Cambridge residents working 
on construction jobs.  He stated that the goal on the Martin Luther King project was 25% but 
only reached 3.8%. 
 
City Manager Rossi stated that the resident worker hours on the project is looked at first.  As of 
April 30, 2015 the numbers looked to be at 3.8% which is less than the required goal of 25%.  
When you look at Cambridge as a community statistically one of the problems is that the 
resident population of workers skilled in or experienced in the construction trades, which is 
important, is less than 2%.  This makes the requirement pretty difficult to meet.  He stated that 
this has always been a problem going back many years.  He stated that the number of 

7 
 



unemployed residents in construction is so small on particular jobs that it is almost impossible to 
reach the 25%.  Mr. Rossi stated that when you look at the minority worker hours on the MLK 
Project it totals 32.6% as of April 30, 2015, which is above the 25% goal.  He noted that in this 
case we are not drawing only from Cambridge but are able to look at other individuals.  When 
you look at the women worker hours on the MLK project as of April 30, 2015 it totals only 1%.  
He noted that the U.S.Census data reveals that women in Massachusetts skilled in the trades is 
less than 2%.  He explained that although the percentages are not good in Item 1 and 3 in the 
report the percentages are consistent with what we have found over many years on this.  He 
stated that the part of the City's work is that the City requires contractors to make a good faith 
effort to comply.  He informed the City Council that the Purchasing Agent checks the contractors 
along with the Compliance Officer, Dwayne Brown.  He stated that Mr. Brown meets with the 
contractors and visits the construction sites.   
 
Councillor Toomey commented that the City should be able to reach more than 3.8%.  He asked 
how the required percentages can be better enforced with the contractors.  He stated that the 
percentages are embarrassing and unacceptable, especially on a City project.  Mr. Rossi stated 
that one thing to remember is that these are the numbers of percentages of companies that 
would hire on the job.  He gave an example of a roofing contractor who come with 7 or 8 regular 
members of his company who work permanently for the roofing contractor the contractor is not 
going to hire anybody on the job.  The City cannot force the contractor to hire people on the job.  
This is when contractors or subcontractors need to make hires on the job this is where they look 
to Cambridge residents, minorities and women in construction.  He further explained that it 
cannot just be people who want to work, they need to be qualified, certified or trained to do the 
jobs required.  So the percentages of hires on these jobs is relatively low.  Mr. Brown noted that 
these thresholds only apply to new hires.  If a contractor is awarded the contract and comes 
with their own workforce they are asked to meet the thresholds of 25, 25, and 10 in good faith 
with new hires.  He stated that if there are skilled workers who want to work on some of the big 
projects they can contact Mr. Brown or go directly to the worksite and apply there through the 
project manager.   They can also go through the union halls.  He stated that the since the data 
was compiled by the U.S. Census Cambridge residents has decreased to 1.1% and this fluctuates.  
He stated that the answer is to get more people interested in the trades and to start earlier.   
 
Councillor Toomey stated that the Carpenter's Union and Local 151 there has to be more than 
3.8% of these union members that live in Cambridge that should be working on these jobs.  Mr. 
Rossi stated that there could be union carpenters who are on jobs in Kendall Square or 
employed Cambridge residents.  This is dealing with the unemployed looking for jobs when we 
are hiring for jobs.  This report is only focused on the Martin Luther King School Project.  
Councillor Toomey stated that it is a combination of all of our faults.  This starts at the high 
school to get the students the training they need.  He stated that the City needs to redouble its 
efforts.  He stated that the School Department needs to find a way to energize the students to 
get them into these programs because it is a tremendous job opportunity with a good salary and 
benefits. 
 
Mr. Rossi spoke about Agenda #16.  He stated that in the past it has been found that the 
number of people that really get through the Apprentice Pathways Program are very few. He 
stated that when you go through the requirements that the individuals have to meet, the kinds 
of commitments they have to make, it does not yield a lot of success.  He stated that there has 
been money allocated to Pathways and in at least two projects, MIT and Alexandria, has set 

8 
 



aside money specifically for career pathway types of jobs.  The City needs to take the time to sit 
down with the unions and construct a different kind of pathways program essentially for 
Cambridge.  He stated that the restrictions or the rules that governs the selection in the 
programs the unions run make it difficult.  The City will have the flexibility because the City will 
be providing the funding rather than just providing the individuals.  This will get the City towards 
the goal wanted of finding more people and getting them into these programs where they will 
be taught the required skills needed.   
 
Councillor Toomey noted that out of 65 who attended the program only 4 graduated.  He stated 
that this is dismal.  Ms. Walsh, Workforce Development, stated that the building pathways 
program runs two to three cycles per year with 15-20 individuals per cycle.  She stated that 
there is a lot of people applying for these limited number of slots some are being recruited from 
Cambridge, Boston and Metro Boston.  The individuals must have their GED, Driver's License, 
and access to a car and be willing to get up at 7 AM.  It weeds people out who are not serious 
about the construction industry.  She spoke about the focus needing to be on younger residents 
and the program has taken steps in that direction.   She stated that a construction awareness 
program will be started in the middle school level to introduce young people to the idea that 
there are jobs in construction and transportation.  She explained that currently there is a 
planning process for another recruitment session which will be held in conjunction with 
Somerville. 
 
Councillor Toomey agreed that this has to start with the younger people.  He asked if there is a 
mentor program where individuals from the unions are in contact with the young people and 
explain what is done on the job.  He commented that this may be an indication that students are 
not graduating from high school with the necessary skills.  He noted that the numbers are an 
embarrassment that the young people cannot be properly trained to step into these union jobs 
paying a decent hourly rate.  He stated that he would work with the City Manager and his 
colleagues to boost these numbers. 
 
City Manager Rossi stated that he felt that a hybrid program would need to be developed by the 
City because the restrictions in the current program make it difficult for many people who are 
on the edge of the job market to be successful.  He stated that the City would be working this 
summer on a program to try to alleviate this. Councillor Toomey added that the City needs to 
start thinking out of the box on these issues.   
 
Councillor McGovern stated that this is symbolic of a larger issue; it is about affordability in the 
City and about those who are making too much money to qualify for City programs but not 
enough money to be able to afford to stay in Cambridge.  This is not just about union workers.  
He spoke about the only fire fighters able to live in the City are those who inherited their homes 
from their parents.  Younger fire fighters who did not have this advantage are living outside of 
the City because they cannot afford to live in the City.  He stated that this is also being seen with 
the union laborers too.  He stated that while he was a School Committee member and previous 
School Committee members there was always talk about the RSTA Program.  He stated that 
there is a push toward biotech, robotics and engineering, all the jobs of the future, the Kendall 
Square jobs.  He stated that students should be prepared for these jobs.  He stated that by doing 
this and instead of adding these to other occupation that were taught in occupational education 
these programs were cut and replaced by these new programs. He commented that a carpenter, 
an electrician cannot be outsourced.  He noted that these are strong jobs which people have 

9 
 



held for years whereby they can purchase a home, raise and support their families.  These 
families were able to purchase homes that their grandchildren can live in because of the 
protections offered.  He stated that the City Council needs to work with the School Department 
to ensure that the RSTA Program is continuing to support these more traditional trades and not 
cut them.  He asked how RSTA plays a role in the internship process and program regarding 
Agenda #16.  Ms. Walsh responded that RSTA is involved in this program.  There is a middle 
school component and there is another aspect that is called the Construction Mentoring 
Program.  She stated that she has hooked up RSTA with this program which is run through the 
MBTA.   The MBTA has an expected shrinking workforce in the future.  They have designed a 
program that allows 1-3 RSTA students to have an intensive experience.  It is a yearlong program 
where students sample unions and are assigned a mentor in the union who would work with the 
student to cultivate the work in the union trades.  She explained that she and the Personnel 
Director visited the laborer's Training Facility and they will be working with the laborers to 
ensure that they are doing meet and greets with the students.  She stated that getting more 
exposure will be helpful to the students to let them know that they have alternatives.  She 
stated that there is a college and career fair in October at Rindge.  There was an invitation to the 
college and career fair sent from the school to the Laborer's Training Facility.  She stated that 
this idea is being sent to the school that there are other avenues to success for some students; 
not necessarily a four year degree.  She stated that the City is attempting to expand the avenues 
for young people and have unions and training programs at these kinds of events.  Councillor 
McGovern stated that he has a four year degree, a Master's Degree and twenty years’ 
experience and he does not make the money that some do in their union work.  He stated that 
there is a mentality that exists that without a four year degree you are not successful. He noted 
that there are all different definitions of success.  He asked why only 1-3 students are able to 
participate the mentorship program.  He asked if more students could participate.  Ms. Walsh 
stated that this is a new program and that those conversations will happen between RSTA 
leadership and the people running the construction mentoring program.  She explained that 
with a new partnership it needs to be tested out to see how it works with the school day.  
Councillor McGovern stated that while the program is built slowly there are students that could 
be helped by this that are not being helped.  He urged that the City be aggressive as possible on 
this.  He asked in relation to Agenda #16 what are some of the issues that prevented applicants 
from completing the program and what the struggles are.  He asked if the City helps individuals 
navigate the system.  Ms. Walsh responded that it is many issues.  She explained the 
recruitment process.  She stated that when the building trades are reached back through the 
Pathways staff that worked with the Cambridge Employment Program sometimes there are 
specific answers about why applicants do not make it through the program or it is that the pool 
was really big.  She stated that she can try to get more specific information.  Sometimes a 
multistep process gets too complicated.  Councillor McGovern commented that technology and 
text messaging is difficult for some individuals.  He stated that the young people he works with 
he has to call them several times to remind them of things.  On Agenda # 1 he stated that he has 
heard from the union people that there is a lot of construction going on in Cambridge and there 
is actually fewer unemployed.  He commented that the contractors are employing people from 
out of state.  He wonder if this could be looked at creatively to ensure that the jobs are going to 
Massachusetts residents.  He wondered if a preference could be given to a former Cambridge 
resident for jobs and how can this pool grow.  Mr. Rossi explained that this is difficult because 
companies bring their own workforce and then you go to the unions and state that we want 
union workers and if they do not have Cambridge residents ready and able they go to their list.  
The City has no control of where these people are from.  Councillor McGovern asked if there is 

10 
 



any way to require that a percentage be Massachusetts residents.  Mr. Rossi explained that this 
is a good faith effort and it is Mr. Brown's job to gain compliance, but this is a difficult problem.  
Councillor McGovern asked if the City keeps a list of Cambridge residents that are union 
employees and can this be shared with contractors.  Mr. Brown stated that the City does not do 
this.  He explained that the City requests the carpenters union that before they consider 
carpenters from other areas to consider Cambridge residents first, but the jobs area on a first 
come first serve basis.  If someone is selected for work they could work for a day or for weeks 
but end up on the bottom of the list and this is the frustration with the process. 
 
Vice Mayor Benzan stated that as he digests this information what we are dealing with is low 
numbers in the public sector.  He noted that in the private sector the City does not have much 
say as to who gets hired for these jobs.  He stated that the workers on the Novartis Project have 
New Hampshire plates and this bothers him because these workers are coming to Cambridge 
and taking advantage of our economy.  He stated that Cambridge residents are not benefitting 
from the construction jobs and the innovation economy.  He spoke about what is being done 
and not being done in the high school and the RSTA program of the future.  He stated that 
students need to be prepared for the innovation economy and to be carpenters.  He spoke 
about the possibility of the RSTA program being restructured.  He noted that 3.8% of the 
workforce at the MLK School are Cambridge residents.  He asked what the definition of a 
minority worker is.  Mr. Brown responded that this is the same classification for both state and 
federal and it is by race.  Vice Mayor Benzan stated that the women, minorities and long term 
residents are not being served.  He stated that the City needs to figure out a way to get more 
Cambridge residents working on these construction jobs and the innovation economy.   
 
Councillor Carlone questioned if the City has statistics on general contractors and 
subcontractors staff members as it relates to minority workers and Cambridge residents.  Mr. 
Brown responded in the affirmative and further stated that the percentages are part of the total 
workforce.  Councillor Carlone commented that this is worse than he thought.  He noted that 
people currently working in construction have a family that is in construction.  He spoke about 
strengthening the construction program at the high school.  He spoke about the negative side of 
the construction industry being that one never knew how long you would work.   
 
Councillor Mazen spoke about Cambridge worker hours and asked how many people would be 
required to satisfy the 25 percent.  Mr. Brown stated that he would not be able to figure this out 
because it goes by trade and the individual worker.  Councillor Mazen stated that the 
percentages are confusing as to how far away from the goal of 25 percent we are.  Mr. Brown 
explained that the percentages are a running total that come from weekly payrolls which are 
tallied both weekly and monthly.  He stated that he felt that four people of 65 may be more 
reasonable.  He stated that if all of greater Boston is vying for 65 slots and Cambridge got four of 
the slots would mean that Cambridge was overrepresented.  So Cambridge may have done a 
better job than expected.  He commented that the 25 percent goal does not seem difficult to 
achieve.  Mr. Brown noted that these are worker hours and they were for weeks when there 
was unskilled or entry level workers.  Councillor Mazen suggested creating an inventory of all 
the participants in a given field and update this inventory all the time and when a job site needs 
workers from a given field you have the list and it would be easier to meet the obligations.  Mr. 
Rossi noted that the unions have the control over which workers they send but in the end it is 
who is next on the list.  Councillor Mazen stated that Cambridge has no power when it comes to 
getting Cambridge residents on job sites despite this obligation.  Mr. Rossi stated that 

11 
 



Cambridge has no power.  He explained that these issues have been tested legally over time.  He 
added that construction workers are employed well in Cambridge; there is a lot of construction 
work.   
 
Mayor Maher stated that this conversation does go back to the high school.  He stated that it 
goes back to exposing students to all different types of paths that they may take.  This really is 
the School Department's issue.  He explained that at an event students were asked if they 
considered a career in law enforcement.  They responded in the negative. When told of the 
salary made by a police officer or fire fighter the students had no understanding of the salary 
that could be made in public service.  He stated that he thinks that this is the same situation for 
the construction industry.  The construction industry is not viewed as a career path.  He noted 
that sons and daughters of police officers and firefighters follow these career paths because 
they have been exposed to them.   
 
Councillor Simmons commented that the conversation at a roundtable between the School 
Committee and the City Council the discussion should be about after CRLS.  She stated that at a 
Girls Only Leadership Development event the girls commented that they never thought about 
being a carpenter.  She agreed with if you do not see it you are not necessarily going to know 
about a particular profession.  She spoke about RSTA looking at skilled trades. 
 
Mayor Maher moved that Agenda # 1 be - 
 
 Placed on file and on a voice vote the motion - 
 Carried. 
 
Mayor Maher moved the following order, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE INSERT ORDER FOR AGENDA #14) 
 
The question now came on adoption and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
Mayor Maher moved that Agenda #16 be - 
 Placed on file and on a voice vote the motion - 
 Carried.          
 
# 2 Here insert Agenda Item # 2 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Mazen questioned how 
this operates on the front end.  He asked when will people see something and what will they 
see.  Deputy City Manager Peterson stated that this is still to be determined.  She added that the 
back end of piece is harder.  It is not going to be difficult about what people will see on the front 
end; it should be streamlined.  She explained that getting GPS on plows will take a longer period 
of time before fully implemented.  This will not be made public automatically because the City 
has to ensure that the systems are working correctly.  Then the goal will be have them made 

12 
 



public.  Councillor Mazen suggested having in house stall do the front end design.  He stated 
that the City should have developers and designers in house for the web app. 
 
Councillor Cheung stated that he could not disagree with the response.  He stated that he 
wanted the back end and front end working hand in hand.  He wanted the information to be 
seen and available to our residents.  He asked the City Manager to review what is being done in 
Pittsburgh.  He stated that Pittsburgh is mounting GPS on their trucks and tracking them in real 
time.  He wanted more of a response as to how this is translating to what will be seen by the 
public.  Commissioner O'Riordan responded that he thinks that the City will be able to provide 
something with a good front end to it.  He stated his concern with the quality control associated 
with plowing operations.  He stated that there are administrative impediments at this time.  He 
wanted the systems improved with the use of technology so that the supervisors can be on the 
roads more frequently and more readily.   
 
# 2 Placed on file. 
 
# 3 Here insert Agenda Item # 3 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone asked if more 
than one-half of the tree wells will not have trees because of the conditions of the wells or 
pedestrian issues. Commissioner O'Riordan stated that with the funding and the data it is 
expected that trees will be placed in approximately one half of the tree wells that have been 
identified.  He stated that he did not have the locations where it will be impossible to place a 
tree because of accessibility issues.  There are 100 trees associated with the Participatory 
Budget number.  He stated that as part of the Chapter 90 Street Reconstruction Project some 
400 extra trees will be planted.  He stated that he could not identify the location for placing the 
trees in the empty tree wells at this point.  He announced that one half of the tree wells will be 
filled within five years.  The program will be continued beyond this to ensure that the other tree 
wells will be filled.  Mr. Rossi added that either a tree is placed or the sidewalk is repaired and a 
tree is located in a more appropriate place in the neighborhood.  Councillor Carlone noted that 
some tree grates are designed so that they can be enlarged.  Mr. O'Riordan stated that if the 
tree well allows for further opening the City will do this where needed so that trees can thrive.  
Councillor Carlone spoke about the trees planted in Paris.  Mr. O'Riordan commented that Paris 
has a more temper climate and does not use the salt and Cambridge is built on fill.  He further 
stated that Cambridge soil is not as rich as the soil in Paris.  He stated that this a great step 
forward.   
 
Councillor Cheung stated that he was planning to hold a hearing on the Committee on Public 
Planting and requested that this matter be referred to the Health and Environment Committee. 
 
Councillor McGovern asked what the involvement is by the Committee on Public Planting in this 
matter.  Commissioner O'Riordan explained that the Public Planting Committee is appointed by 
the City Manager to advise the City Arborist, the Public Works Commissioner, the City Manager 
and the City Council on matters relating to public planting.  Monthly meetings are held by the 
arborist, chaired by the Public Planting Committee chair and attendance includes member of the 
Parks Division of Public Works Department and a member of Community Development 
Department.  The Public Planting Committee provides an invaluable service in terms of advice, 
recommendations and new ideas.  The committee is a strong advocate for healthy trees or 
urban forests in the City. 
 

13 
 



# 3 Placed on file and referred to the Health and Environment Committee on motion of 
Councillor Cheung. 
 
# 4 Here insert Agenda Item # 4 read by Mayor Maher. Councillor Simmons spoke about 
changes to Area 4 to make it nicer in terms of its visual aspects.  She stated that we are looking 
for the spots that need some special care and work with these spots.  She noted that a 
neighborhood that is well cared for is going to have less crime and less problems.  She stated 
that tree wells are a bone of contention for her because people use the tree wells as areas to 
park their dogs.  She is hopeful that what is done for tree wells is a deterrent to this behavior.  
She stated that proper drainage is needed on Pine and Harvard Streets.  She wanted the 
community to have the opportunity to discuss these issues and figure out a strategy to address 
these issues.   
 
Vice Mayor Benzan acknowledged members of Area 4 who came to testify about the 
neighborhood?  He stated that with the money that went into the budget this year there will be 
improvements made to Area 4 for the streets, sidewalks, and water and sewer projects.  He 
spoke about a broken sidewalk on Cherry Street and sand where someone can trip.  He wanted 
the streets and sidewalks properly swept.  He asked how the City can get the young people to be 
more respectful of the parks in the City.  Commissioner O'Riordan stated that Morgan Park is a 
beautiful park.  He spoke about whether the City should develop a take-in and take-out policy 
around the parks.  He stated that weekends are a challenge as parks are used for picnics and 
birthday parties.  It is a challenge for the City to get to the parks in a timely fashion after the 
weekend.  He stated that at the meeting scheduled for June 30, 2015 an emphasis should be 
made to people in the community that the parks are community parks and are there for the 
community to protect for themselves as well as having the City do additional work in order to 
keep the parks clean.  Vice Mayor Benzan stated that when he travels to other parts of the City 
he is impressed with cleanliness of certain neighborhoods.  He asked moving forward how we 
can ensure that the work being done in the neighborhood is comparable to the work that is 
being done across the City.   He wanted to ensure that the plantings done are up to par.  
Commissioner O'Riordan explained the benefit of the development of a five year plan. It allows 
the City to plan projects in the neighborhoods with more thought, consideration and public 
process.  He stated that the City benefitted from the public process for the norther sewer 
project.  He stated that when the public participates in the role of designing streets and 
sidewalks through the public process they take more ownership of them and the projects are 
more comprehensive.  He informed the City Council that there will be a significant amount of 
public process in the Area 4 neighborhood.  He announced that the investment from the City 
will be just as significant in Area 4 as in other neighborhoods.  He stated that there is a better 
outcome with community engagement.  Vice Mayor Benzan asked about Morgan Park being 
delayed in being mulched and was this because the work was subcontracted.  He stated that 
beautification, such as mulching, should be done much earlier in the season.  Commissioner 
O'Riordan responded that crew have been working constantly over the last month trying to 
catch up on the damage that was caused this this winter and as a consequence there was a 
delay in putting mulch in certain parks in the City.  He stated that some of the park maintenance 
has to be contracted out, but there are Public Works crews who have been working evenings 
and Saturdays.  He added that because of the winter it has been a challenge and the City wants 
to get the parks back into proper repair as soon as possible.  He added that there has been a lot 
of damage to the irrigation system and a significant amount of time has been spent to repair the 
irrigation systems.  Vice Mayor Benzan stated that under the Mayor's Program the youth of the 

14 
 



City participated in street cleaning projects.  He asked how often will crews be in neighborhoods 
sweeping streets.  Commissioner O'Riordan stated that sweeping streets and sidewalks is 
regulated by ordinance and it is the responsibility of the adjacent neighbor.  He stated that 
Public Works crews clean the major squares on a daily basis.   He stated that the responsibility 
to sweep the sidewalk and the responsibility of the adjacent neighbor may need to be re-
emphasized to the community at large.  He explained that this is too arduous for the City to take 
on this responsibility.  He stated that there is a science program for youth and there are youth 
working in the parks.  He stated that from the nine week program fifteen people are employed 
who work in various departments within Public Works.   
 
Councillor McGovern asked how the City supports neighborhoods to keep the neighborhoods 
clean and litter free.  He asked if the School Department will be involved to educate students 
about the impact of keeping their neighborhood clean and the impact on the environment.  
Commissioner O'Riordan stated that the City employs a landscape architect and an 
administrator who have been sponsoring a program throughout the neighborhood in terms of 
community clean ups.  This appears on the web site as a formal program.   He explained that if 
there is an entity that wants to participate or sponsor a cleanup program they can enroll on the 
web site.  There are people who will organize this.  Commissioner O'Riordan stated his 
commitment to work with the School Department on this effort.  Deputy City Manager Peterson 
stated that the City has worked with the RSTA design program to develop an anti-littering 
campaign.  She informed the City Council that there are students who are interested in the 
design component, but there is little interest in the anti-litter message.  The City will continue to 
work on this.  
# 4 Placed on file. 
 
# 5 Here insert Agenda Item # 5 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung stated that he 
loved this playground and wanted to know where the name came from.  Mr. Rossi explained 
that Alexander W. Kemp was a six year old boy who loved to play in this playground.  He was a 
victim of a tragic accident and passed away.  His father has made a contribution to the City for 
the upkeep of the park.   
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 5) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
#10 Here insert Agenda Item #10 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung stated that this 
is long overdue.  He stated that there is phone service in the cloud now.  He stated that the 
same kind of things you expect from your cell phone can be done with your desk phone.  He 
wanted to encourage the City to look at what is the current state of the art in technology so that 
the City is not continually investing five years behind the curve.    
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 

15 
 



(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 10) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
#15 Here insert Agenda Item #15 read by Mayor Maher. Councillor Simmons asked if this is 
the same bus for the North Cambridge Senior Center.  Deputy City Manager Peterson responded 
in the negative. 
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 15A) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 15B) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 
#18 Here insert Agenda Item #18 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone asked what is 
the percentage of the funds.  Budget Director Franconi stated that the City typically uses 
between 1.5 and 1.8 percent to cover things that were not budgeted.  This is in our salary 
account and relates to union negotiations and retirements that occur during the year.   
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 18) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 

16 
 



#19 Here insert Agenda Item #19 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung thanked all the 
volunteers who worked on this. 
 
#19 Placed on file. 
 
#20 Here insert Agenda Item #20 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone noted that all 
agree with this to cut down on car ownership.  He stated that the Mid Cambridge Neighborhood 
Association, primarily, requested that if a neighbor is going to incorporate a space that the 
neighborhood be made aware of this ahead of time or are involved in the process.  He asked Mr. 
Rossi how he would respond to this request since it is a commercial use by an organization 
within a residential setting.  Mr. Roberts stated that the Planning Board considered this issue 
and recommended a buffer distance of ten feet in lower density residential neighborhoods.  He 
stated further that additional requirements and constraints were put on where car sharing 
vehicles would be allows on residential lots. He stated that special permit provision was also 
included.  The Planning Board was also open to have the Board of Zoning Appeal be the 
appropriate jurisdiction for reviewing the special permit.  Councillor Carlone stated that a street 
location is in public view but a private location may not be.  He asked if this is going to be out of 
public and private views.  He stated that he was concerned about the implementation.    Mr. 
Roberts stated that the concept behind car sharing in the zoning is that it functions the same 
way as any kind of private parking for individuals.  The difference is that rather than being a 
privately owned car it is a car that residents from the entire area if they are part of a car sharing 
organization can utilize the car.  He added that car sharing is not meant to be intrusive; it is 
meant to have a car available for use. 
 
Councillor McGovern stated that he supports the goal but this has be to taken into the larger 
context around parking in general.  He stated that parking is being lost in neighborhoods from 
bump-outs, bike lanes and car sharing businesses.  This is another way that residents see the 
loss of parking spaces.  He asked who this works because it is not just about Zipcar.  Mr. Roberts 
stated that the provisions do not apply to any one particular company.  It applies to the lot on 
which the parking space is located.  A property that is zoned with a certain number of parking 
spaces and that some of the spaces can be used by car sharing vehicles which can be part of a 
car sharing organization.  He explained that there are a number of different ways that this can 
operate and the zoning does not limit how it can be operated.  The zoning just limits the number 
of spaces that can be used for car sharing vehicles.  Councillor McGovern stated his concern with 
a property that has four parking spaces and the spaces are rented out, the property owner 
increases his income and then the property owner uses a parking space on the street that he 
previously did not use because he parked in his driveway.  He asked if the property owner 
needed to get a signed approval from his neighbor, similar to the curb cut process.  Mr. Roberts 
responded that there is no current provision in the zoning that requires neighbor approval.  This 
is a matter of what is allowed as of right or what is allowed by special permit.  A special permit 
would require notification on-site of the advertisement and to all abutters about what is being 
sought and that there is a public hearing to review the special permit request.  Councillor 
McGovern stated that everything should be done to limit the negative impacts and the 
unintended consequences of doing something like this.   
 
Councillor Kelley commented that parking is near and dear to everyone's heart.  He stated that 
how the City Council approaches this discussion is going to a marker of how similar discussions 

17 
 



on other aspects of the shared or disruptive economy are approached.  He stated that the world 
is changing rapidly and governments are not known for being nimble.   
 
Councillor Carlone stated that in the Planning Board memo the board advises the staff to 
investigate whether there are objections raised to specific instances of car sharing activities and 
that this information be communicated to the City Council.   
 
#20 Referred to the petition. 
 
#21 Here insert Agenda Item #21 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone asked if there 
were any other uses not listed considered.  Mr. Roberts stated that the only other uses not 
included are religious uses and they were not studied as part of the Nexus Study. 
 
Mayor Maher acknowledge Councillor Simmons for her leadership as Chair of the Housing 
Committee on this important issue. 
 
Councillor Simmons expressed her appreciation to all for their work to update the incentive 
zoning provisions.  She stated that she hopes that the Ordinance Committee will take up this 
matter and bring it before the full City Council so that it can be voted on and ordained.  She 
stated that this change is going to have a huge impact on the City.  She stated that the need 
continues with 101 rental units coming off line and the CHA list closed for 2-4 years.   
 
Councillor McGovern stated that this is long overdue but extremely significant.  He stated that 
study will be coming out this summer about raising the inclusionary percentage that will require 
developers to build more affordable housing.  The linkage fee is being tripled for commercial 
developers for affordable housing.  He noted that these are three decisions made by the City 
Council on affordability and who will be get to live in the City as the City moves forward.  This is 
a bold and responsible way to approach this.   
 
#21 Referred to the Planning Board and the Ordinance Committee for hearing and report. 
 
#23 Here insert Agenda Item #23 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone asked what is 
the amount that HUD gives to the City for affordable housing.  Acting Assistant City Manager for 
Community Development Iram Farooq stated that the budget includes $850,000 received by the 
City from Block Grants and the majority of this goes to housing.  She stated that the HOME 
Program funds are in addition.  Mr. Rossi stated that when HOME is added to HUD funds it is a 
total of about $1.3 million. 
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE COPY ORDER FOR AGENDA # 23) 
The question now came on adoption of the order and the roll was called and resulted as follows: 
YEAS:  Vice Mayor Benzan, Councillors Carlone, Cheung, Kelley, Mazen,   
  McGovern, Simmons, Toomey and Mayor Maher  - 9 
NAYS:  None        - 0 
ABSENT: None        - 0 
and the order was - 
 Adopted. 
 

18 
 



CALENDAR 
 
# 2 No action taken. 
 

CALENDAR ITEM THREE AND COMMUNICATION NUMBER TEN 
 

Councillor Cheung moved suspension of the rules to dispense with the regular order of business 
to bring forward Communication #10 with Calendar Item # 3.   
 
The question now came on suspension of the rules and on a voice vote the rules were - 
 Suspended. 
 
Here insert Communication #10 read by Mayor Maher.  Mayor Maher stated that 
Communication Item #10 was referred to Calendar Item # 3 and on a voice vote the motion - 
 Carried.   
 
Here insert Calendar Item # 3 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung stated that he placed 
this item on the Table because an abutter had checked of that they did not want the blade sign.  
He stated that Communication # 10 states that the abutter checked off the wrong box.   
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE INSERT ORDER FOR CALENDAR ITEM # 3) 
 
The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 

APPLICATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

# 1 Order adopted by the affirmative vote of eight members. 
 Mayor Maher recorded as "Present". 
# 2 Order adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
# 3 Referred to the City Manager with power after the receipt of a sketch as requested on 
the form. 
# 4 Referred to the City Manager with power. 
 

CONSENT COMMUNICATIONS 
 
# 1 - 9 Placed on file 
#10 Referred to Calendar Item Number Three 
#11 Placed on file. 
 
 

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS 
 
Councillor Simmons moved adoption of the Resolutions # 1 - 19 and making them unanimously 
sponsored upon adoption.  The motion carried on a voice vote. 
 
#1- 12 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 

19 
 



#13 Charter Right exercised by Councillor Kelley. 
#14-19 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members.  
 

CONSENT POLICY ORDERS 
 

# 7 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
# 1 Report accepted and placed on file. 
# 2 Report accepted and placed on file.  On motion of Councillor Simmons the amendment 
to the Living Wage was referred to the Ordinance Committee. 
# 3 Report accepted and placed on file. 
 In connection with this matter Councillor McGovern submitted the following order, the 
question being on adoption, to wit: 
(HERE INSERT POLICY ORDER # 10) 
 The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 
 Councillor McGovern submitted the following order, the question being on adoption, to 
wit: 
(HERE COPY POLICY ORDER # 11) 
 The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members.   

 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS FROM OTHER CITY OFFICERS 

 
# 1 Placed on file 
# 2 Placed on file. 

NON CONSENT ORDERS 
 
# 1 Here insert Policy Order # 1 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Carlone 
questioned how this would proceed because it is not a zoning package.  Mayor 
Maher stated that if the City Council adopts this order it becomes a zoning 
petition.  Councillor Carlone asked who translates this into a complete zoning 
petition.  Councillor Cheung stated that there were more than five Councillors who  
have ties to constituents who were talking about the project.  This is a rough cut  
of what is put into the zoning ordinance that the neighbors came up with along  
with the developer.  This was to bring this before the City Council and Community  
Development to have a discussion.  This would initiate Community Development 
looking at the site and reporting back to the Ordinance Committee and the Planning 
Board. 
 
Councillor McGovern explained that there were a number of community meetings and 
input from residents on this matter.  He stated that the developer is making changes 
to the project that will increase his expenses.  He commented that a lot of work went 
into this.  Councillor Cheung noted that the neighbors are working on a Memo of 
Understanding with the developer. 

20 
 



 
The question now came on adoption of the order, which reads as follows: 
(HERE INSERT POLICY ORDER # 1) 
The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 Referred to the Ordinance Committee and Planning Board for hearing and 
report.     
 
# 2 Here insert Policy Order # 2 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor McGovern noted  
that this is before the legislature now. 
 
The question now came on adoption of the order, which reads as follows: 
(HERE INSERT POLICY ORDER # 2) 
The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 
# 3 Here insert Policy Order # 3 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor McGovern  
explained that this stemmed from a concern raised in Cambridgeport about  
beekeeping and raised a whole conversation about beekeeping throughout the City. 
There is no ordinance on whether it is legal to keep bees in the City.  This is a growing 
practice.  This was a good process that brought people together for a compromise. 
 
The question now came on the adoption of the order, which reads as follows: 
(HERE INSERT POLICY ORDER # 3) 
The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members.   
 
# 4 Here insert Policy Order # 4 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Kelley stated that 
he would rather the meeting be a regular City Council meeting given the fact that  
this is the last meeting before the summer starts.   
 
Mayor Maher in response to an inquiry from Councillor Kelley stated that this is not a  
roundtable meeting.  He explained that after consultation with the City Manager and  
the Planning Board that this is a night they would like to have this meeting.   
 
Councillor McGovern stated that putting this meeting together is not an attempt to  
limit public comment.  He stated that there is a perception by the public about this  
and the City Council should be aware of this.  He stated that it is important to have  
an additional meeting on this for people who cannot attend this meeting.   
 
Councillor Cheung asked how this impact the new City Council rules relating to  
Committee reports.  
 
Mayor Maher explained that he has been informed by the City Clerk that the legal ad  
for this joint hearing has been advertised by the Community Development 
Department.  Councillor Kelley stated that he never told anyone to schedule this joint  
hearing.  He added that someone scheduled this and advertised it in the newspaper is  
not the problem of the City Council.  Councillor McGovern wanted the public assured  

21 
 



that the City Council would meet to discuss Volpe over the summer.  Vice Mayor  
Benzan stated that he envisions having several ordinance committee hearings on this 
particular matter.  He further stated that he anticipates that the petition will be  
refiled.  There will be plenty of opportunity for the public to have input on this  
petition.  Councillor Carlone concurred and stated that there will be at least one  
other meeting.  He stated that if the petition is refiled there will be additional 
hearings.  This is not a rush job on this petition.   
 
Councillor Simmons commented that the City Council is missing a business meeting.   
This meeting will look at a specific issue.   
 
Mayor Maher added that this meeting is a televised open meeting and there will be  
public comment and no time limit.  He stated that the Chair could call a special  
regular meeting prior to this meeting if there is something that needs to be acted  
upon.   
 
Councillor Toomey moved the question and stated that the timeframe proposed by  
the Mayor is the correct way to do this.  This area is sensitive and it is important that  
there be one evening with the Planning Board and the staff to discuss this because 
time is slipping and it is unknown what GSA will do..  He stated that Cambridge has 
more public input than any other community.  He wanted to adopt the order as is so 
that the meeting can be advertised and posted.  This deserves the sole attention of  
the City Council because this is a very critical time. 
 
Councillor Kelley stated that he wanted the City staff to explain how the Boston  
Properties rezoning moving forward may impact this proposal.   
 
Councillor McGovern stated that if there will be additional materials that everything  
possible be done to get this information to the City Council prior to the meeting.   
 
The question now came on adoption of the order which reads as follows: 
(HERE INSERT ORIGINAL POLICY ORDER # 4) 
 
Councillor McGovern moved to amend the aforementioned order by adding at the end  
a new paragraph which reads as follows: 
 
ORDERED: That the City Manager be and hereby is requested to provide 
  the City Council with any additional information on this 
  matter prior to the joint public hearing. 
The question now came on the amendment - and on a voice vote the amendment - 
 Carried. 
 
Councillor Kelley moved to further amend the order by adding a new paragraph 
that reads as follows: 
 
ORDERED: That the City Manager be and hereby is requested to provide 
  to the City Council an overview of the future development  
  and potential zoning for Kendall Square. 

22 
 



The question now came on the amendment - and on a voice vote the amendment - 
 Carried. 
 
 Vice Mayor Benzan asked Mayor Maher how the meeting will be conducted  
procedurally.  Mayor Maher responded that this will be need to be planned out by the  
Co-Chairs of the Ordinance Committee. 
 
The question now came on adoption of the order as amended which reads as follows: 
(HERE INSERT AMENDED POLICY ORDER # 4) 
The order was - 
 Adopted as amended by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 
# 5 Here insert Policy Order # 5 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung stated  
that the big belly solar trash compactors should be looked at.  He commented that  
the Boston/Cambridge Hubway system was losing money and he expressed his concern  
for the long term solvency of the system. 
 
Mayor Maher stated that originally no advertising was wanted for the Hubway system,  
but today 50 percent of the bikes have advertising on them.  He stated that it is time  
to review this in its entirety.   
 
The question now came on adoption of the order which reads as follows: 
(HERE COPY POLICY ORDER # 5) 
The order was - 
 Adopted by the affirmative vote of eight members. 
 Councillor Mazen was recorded in the negative on this matter.   
 
# 8 Here insert Policy Order # 8 read by Mayor Maher.  Councillor Cheung noted  
that he was told by Whole Foods that they are not allowed to donate food once it has 
been out in the public.  Councillor Mazen stated that the City Council will see who  
will come out to speak about this process in more detail.  He noted that there are 
many people who are organizing so that food will not go to waste and there are  
significant avenues for unused food distribution.   
 
Councillor McGovern suggested that conversation is held with the non-profits.  
 
The following order was now considered, the question being on adoption to wit: 
(HERE INSERT ORIGINAL POLICY ORDER # 8).   
 
Councillor McGovern moved to amend the order to adding the non-profit  
organizations to the order. 
 
The question now came on the amendment - and on a voice vote the amendment - 
 Carried. 
 
 The question now came on the adoption of the order as amended which reads 
as follows: 
(HERE INSERT AMENDED POLICY ORDER # 8) 

23 
 



The order was - 
 Adopted as amended by the affirmative vote of nine members. 
 

LATE RESOLUTIONS 
The following late resolutions were made unanimously sponsored: 
 
#20-28  Adopted by the affirmative vote of nine members.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councillor Toomey the meeting adjourned at 9:35 PM> 
 
 
A list of documents and other exhibits used at the meeting: 
 
 City Manager’s Agenda 
 City Council Agenda 
 CD of meeting 

 

24 
 


